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4843
.July 16th, 1912, 10 0 'clock A.M.

Defendant in court wi th counsel. .Tury call eel; all pre­

sent. Case resumed.

TI-ill COURT: You may proceed, gentlEmen.

PETER PIROTTE on th estand for furth er

c ross- exsminat ion:

1£"8. FOPJ): How long have you been on the police force at

Venice this last time, Mr Pirotte? A I think I went back

the 1st of .January, after I got through here.

Q You worked in the sheriff's office up until the 1st of

January? A I j;ust kind of had a 1 eave of absenc e. I

had never revoked my commission anyway; I was working

here.

Q When di d you go to work for the sheriff's office? A I

think it was about the 9th of october.

Q The 9th of october? A So.mewhere along there.

Q And you were not on the Venice police force from the

9th of october to the 1 st of January; is that correct?

A yes sir.

Q How long before the i3th~.o'f~ October was it that you

were on the police force at VeniGe? A Well, I ViaS on

for about two years "1.'"6. th the elm aption of being away about

six months.

Q 'Who vIas chief v:hen you left the Venice police force

on October 9th? A George Irettleton was city marshal
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1 th ere.

2 Q ..And who was chi ef before and whil e you 'if ere tbere?

3 A John Parrent.

4- Q Parrent v~s not chief of police when you left the de­

5 partment? A You say he ,las not?

6 Q I am asking you, if he ~~s not chief of police when

7 you left the police department? A I think so, yes.

8 Q And you were restored under the next chief, Nettle-

9 ton? A yes sir.

12 &ctlY,fio. I spoke to the mayor, and he said if I want-

13 ed to go up town, why, he thought it would be all right

14 for a while, and I could come back.

Q Now, you say you were on leave of absence. Do you10

11 mean that you got a 1 eave of absence? A Well, no t 6t-

I
•i

15 ov VE.1at pay did you receive on the police department dOYffi

16 there?

17 l~R APFEL:" Wait a moment. Yle object to that as immaterial:

18 THE COURT: Obj ootion sustained.

19 1J!RFORD: That is all.

20

21 BEDIRIWT EX:AlUnATION

221m DARROW: llr Pirotte, you say that you were here in court

23 during the time they were getting the 1JcNamra jury. You

'yere in the court room at th at time as bailiff?

time V/8S it?

26 Q V.hile they were getti~~ the ]rcNamara jury? A I was.
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cross- E!i~amination VIe c overed the matter covered on di rect

direct examination?

I
•
•

Your obj ootion is that it is not proper re-

Objected to upon t he ground that it is not

facts.

THE COURT:

Q And had I or anyone else had anything to do with your

first interviews with Franklin? A I was not.

Q Were yout"Cquainted with me at all v.hen you had these

~amination, whether the answers be the same or not, that

is the obj ect of c ross-examination, to bring out all the

redirect exanination, being the same subj ect matter cover-

Q Did you get acquainted wi th me at all? A I did not •

up.

ad on direct ex~1ination, and of course, your Honor, on

cross-examination, new answers are frequently brought out,

arid that doesn't make the matter new sUbject matter. On

Q Do you remember when it was you first toldme about

these interviews? A I think itv~s about the middle of

lfB DAREOW: This matter is unc e:·tain, which I wish to clear

must have been about the middle of March. I don't exact-

llR FORD: Rot redirect.

meeting him and having the first intel~iew with him?

A You did not.

Tffi FORD:

Q Now, th e first time til at you and Franklin togeth er met

l'iir Watt, where did you say that. \vas?
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1

2

THE COURT: Well) with that statement, you may go over'

it again. It is irregular, but you can go into it ~ain,

3 with that statement.

4- 1m DARROW: That is all th ere is to it; I am not certain.

5 Where did you say that youwere first -- the first

6 tme you met Watt when you were with Franklin?

7

8

MR J?ORD: objected to upon t he ground that it is covered

in addition to the former objection, it is already covered

9 in the testimony. He said hemet them as they\--;rere coming

10 from t he Dec at or ho tel -- as they c arne out cf the Dec atur

11 hot el.

the question.

coming up ocean front.

A 1,fet him on the ocean front near Navy street, he VIas

\
struct the vntness not th~ answer until ~e have an oppor-

\

end I ask your Honor to in-

ur DarroW' says there is a little matter he

evening? A I did not.

TBF, COUR'l' :

lJR FORD: I obj rot to t bat

would like to clear up in his mind, and perhaps for the

l' ecord. mile it is irregular , it ish armless. Answer

1m. DARROW: Earl. you any appointment 0 l' arrangement or

understanding ':rith ]!Lr·Watt that you were to meet that

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

tuni ty to obj ec ~ hereaft el'.

THE COURT: yes, it is your OtJ.ty to give coum el an oppor­

tunity toobj €Ct.

1m DARROW: That meeting was purely ~cidental.
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1 l!R FORD: .Objected to upon the ground it is calling for a

2 conclusion af the witness.

3 UR DARROYT: VTas i t arr~ng ed in any '."ray?

4·

5

6

7

1m FORD:Obj e:ted to upon the ground it is ~lret\dy

answered.

THE COURT: Overrul ed.

ltR DARROW: Was t hat meeting e.rranged in any \vay? A no

8 sir.

elusions.

c.t tendiion to.

UR FORD: He gave the conversation.

The whole af t he conversation was testified

That is the first night, was it, that you three went .

th e -.:ri tness.

mind, or v.hat vlt\S in his mind; he gave th e conversation.

toby th e wi tn €Ss, and the j nry can draw th ei I' own c on-

l[R APPEL: That is exactly 'what we contend, your Honor,

that when he asked the question, your Honor, what 'vias in

mind, v.hat hereferred to, what did he attract Franklin's

MR DARROW: I think it is not, your Honor.

~rR FORD: The ~~tness cannot tell vnlat was in Franklin's

it. To v/hat did that conversation refer?

l1RFORD: We'obje:t to that as calling for E. conclusion af

to dinner together? A yes sir.

Q, 1'l"ow, }[r pirott e, inspeaking in your testimony on cf'oss-

examilH;tion on yesterday, you spoke in reference to your

ESldng Franklin if I gave him any money, and his reply to

Q,
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1 THE COURT: 'Jthe only question is whether or not. it has

2 been fully cleared up. You are entitled to the qUestion~f

3 you have not ha d it t that is th e only point.

4- 1m FORD: It was gone into on direct ex:am.ination and fully

5 on cross-examination.

6 lJR rARROW: I do not think so. I think the cross-eJcam-

7 ination left it somewhat doubtful, not veTy.

8 THE COURI.': All right; I will resolve th e doubt in your

12 URDARROW: What moneyvvas referred to, chang e the ques-

9 favor.

10 A Let me have the question.

11 (Lass question read.)
I
~

•
13 tion--

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



4849

2p 1 MR. FORD. We object to th& as calling for a conclusion

2 of the witness, a self-serving declaration, and the con-

3 versation itself is the best evidence of its meaning.

4. MR. DARROW' ;he Witness cannot make a self-serving decla-

5 ration, 1 will state that as a matter of information to

6 couna el.

7 MR. FREDERIC~· The only proposition is thiS, your Honor:

8 The witness giving, or attempted to give, as his recol-

9 lection best served him, the entire conversation. Now,

10 we might want to argue that that meant one thing and the

11

12

13

14

15

defense might want to argue that it meant another thing.

Now, to ask this witness for an opinion in regard to the

matter, he might give his opinion, but he would not know

what Franklin's opinion was, and at any rate it would be

an opinion and it see IIB to me the facts already being

I
4
4
•
t
•
~

I

J
,I

16 before the jury they should be left Without the opinion

17 in order that we might argue What they mean.

18 MR. FORD. The only thing that is really impor tan t is

19 Franklin's meanings am Franklin's sayings and Franklin's

20 doings.

21 MR. DARROW. Let me Withdraw the question and 1 will put

22 it in another way. Q When you asked Fr anklin where he

23 got that money, what money had you been talking abou t?

24

25

26

14R • FORD· We obj ect to that on the ground th at the con­

versation itself is the best evidence of what they had

been talking about.
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1 MR. DARROW. That is what 1 am getting at, what money

2 were you talking about at that time?

3 MR. FORD. We object to that on the ground it has been

4- fully covered on cross-examination and on direct examina-

5 tion and it is not a new sUbjec t nor the sUbj ec t of redirect

exarrJination, and, for ther, that the witness has already6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

I
I

testified that the only thing said about money was--l asked'

the Witness in one place and he says, and in another place

he says Mr. watt asked the witness if he got any money fro~

Darrow, and that was all the conversation they had about

money. Now, it is evident that they are not talking

about any other money except the money referred to in the

conversatiOD.

MR. APPEL- We want to show, your Honor, that at the time

of this conversation wi tlj Mr. Franklin, that ther e had been

•:
•
4

1
1
I

16 no money transaction discussed wi th Mr. Franklin, with the

17 Witness or with Mr. Watt in the presence of each other,

18 except the moneys that were used in the bribery of t lB

19 juror Lockwood; we want to show that this Witness had

20 never had any conversation with him in regard to money

21 transactions in any way, shape or manner, except in con-

22 nection With the bribery of juror Lockwood; now, wl:nmwe

23 show that the jury can determine whether or not when the

24 question Was asked, whether Mr. Darrow gave him any money

25 or not, it waB wi th reference to that money and none other i

26 furthermore, your Honor, your Honor can see the futility
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1 of the argument upon the other side, what were these

2 people talking about over there? They were talking of

3 nothing else except in regard to },ir. Franklin's connections

4· with his troubles in reference to this very case, in ref­

5 erence to the bribery, there was no other subject of con-

6 versation; would it be likely that this Witness had

7 in his mind that he was asking whether or not be had given

8 him the money to buy railroad stocks? Would it be likely

9 he was asking him who gave him the money to buy a house and

10 lot when the conversation was in reference to this bribery?

11

12

13

14

15

Now, we want to clear that and make it absolutely certain

and that is the object of it, and any question, no matter

what it is that will bring out the answer of this witness,

bring out his mind, will bring out the sUbject of his con­

versation, will bring out the situation, what are the

•II
4
•
II
11..
~
j,

.4

16 surrounding circurratances in connection With the mind of

17 this wi tness, and the answer given him by Mr. Franklin in

18 light of those circumstances, then the jury have a right

19 to say they were talking simply and only concerning this

20 bribery, concerning the money Franklin is alleged to have

21 used, concerning this case and concerning his connection

22 with it, and inthe 1ight of thos e c ir cums tanc es, Your Honor

23 has a right to say J the jm:y have a right to say J and I

24 have aright to say they were tal king concerning

25 alone. That'is the object of this conversation.

26 JAR. FREDERICKS. ",hat is true J your Honor--



MR. DARROW. Your Honor, there was undoubtedly a question

asked about this in direct and there were a number of

questions asked about it in cross, and counsel seeks to'

draw the inference from it in croBs-examination that there

was reference to any other money or any particular money,

just a plain, simple statement of this Witness that he

never got any money. Now, this witness did say at one

time, used the word any and at anotner time .the word

4852
THE COURT. Mr. Appel, there is no doubt about your right to I

go into this matter; the question is and the objection is

made that you have gone fully into it.

MR. FREDERICKS· May I not say a word about their right

to go into the matter? We made the objection.

THE COURT. 1 will hear you when the defense is closed.

MR. FREDERI CKS • I as s umed they had.

MR. DARROW. We had, Mr.F.r eder i cks. Go ahead.

You want to close and I iUlld like to add a word, that is

what you asked?

MR. FREDERICKS· Yes.

1

2

3

4-

5

6

7

8

B 9

10
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26

thete. Did you get that money.

conversations of it in there.

Ther e is two or three

I.-
4
•
=II
4
J
J

.4
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1 These little words vrhich might not mean <:1I:\)Tthing to

2 the witness, might mean something to the case, if the

3 People were tGCp.nical, ',vhich I take it the case should not

4- be in a case of this sort. The matter, perhaps, is not

5 fully cleared up. Now, I would not have much doubt wout

612 men or any 100 men who were not intereste d in th e case

7 as to their understwding of ':'rhat was talked about , but

8 I donftvJant to leave it in a:qy doubt, and the question is

9 plain and simple and fair for this witness to s GiY vrh at

10

11

12

13

14

15

money was being discussed when Franklin said he never got

the money from me or any money from me or whichever €OC-

pression he used or whichever money was being discussed

at that time. It certainly is fair. It is redirect. It

might help cl ear up something that is uncertain. Counsel

may ;:rgue any way they see fit after the answer is given,

•
l:
"~
.J
;1
J

.4

16 but certainly for. the jury to get as much light on the sub-

17

18

19

20

21

22

j ect as they can, and it is fair to me. We should have

as might light on the subj ect as we can.

:MR MffiDERICKS: . That is true, and I do not desire to be

overly technical, still we believe it is our duty tocall

for the technicalities of l)rocedure to a certainettent,

and this obj ection- of ours is only one of principle, large-

23 lYe It is true this '.v.i.tness hassaid·that on one occasion

24 he has said or used the '''lord ltthat moneylt in his answer.

Did Darro'w give you t hat money on aI\Y occasion. He said

did he give yon any money, and Franklin replied, and he26

25
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1 has gi1JJen those replip-s, and he has stat ed that that· ques-

2 tion and t ret reply were the only time that that subj ect

3 \vas mentioned. nOVI, having given the entire conversation

4- on the subject, those are the facts, and if 'we permit a

5 witness to say what th ESe facts mean, vre take away fram the

6 jury the obligation and th e duty of saying \vhat those

7 facts mean. He has given his facts, it is not for him now',

8 to give an opinion. He has given all tre facts, and if the
\

9 matter is in any doubt at all, TIhy, then, it is a duty

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

that is broW;ht about by those facts, and this ',vitness

has not th e right to attempt to put .a con struction on

those facts, \vhen the facts are plain and simple, and all

in. Now, that is our view of the matter. He has given

those entire facts. I am Willing to ailinit that the mat-

ter does not amount to a great deal, EDCC ept as a mtlt ter of

principle. We are all of us, probably, more or less aware

that ,vritness=son 'both sides of a case, of any case, and

all cases, became, perhaps a trifle par~isan, that is the

n,\ture of things, and it is with no special criticism of

this witness any more than it is of humanity in general, a

for that reason, ~rvitnesses are not J.l!T.ffiitted to give opin­

ions. that is one of the reason s they are no t pe l111i t ted

..
l:
""~
.!
)
I
,(

•
•
I
I
I

I

23 to give opinions as to vmat was meant. nOVI, he has stat-

24 ed the facts; that should end it.·

]Ir Fredericks, you misunderstood the ques-Ire DARROW:

26 tion. I VIi thdre'J'1 the one as1:ing for an opinion.

25



1

2

asked him now for the fact, what the conversation '.vas

about.

4855

3 UR FREDERICKS: But he has given all the conversation. It

4­

5

was orily an opinion on his part, and the answer showed

there should have been no --

6 UR DARROW: We can find out by asking.

7 1~rRFREDERICKS: It is principle, that is all.

8 1m DARROW: It is a mat ter of principle with me, a lit

9 t1e more.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT: Obj ootion overruled.

UR DARROY!: Wi 11 YOlll1~ad t hat quest ion?

(Last question read by the reporter.)

A I suppose the money that Darrow was supposed to have

given him for to bribe the jury.

UR DARROW: .Any spooial -- that is all.

liTR FREDERICKS: That is all.

GEORGE W. HOOD,a yri tness called on behalf

of the d efens e, being fi rst duly sworn, testified as fol-

10YlS: .

DIRh."'CT FA:RHUATIOJ:T

MR APPEL: You may state your nane, ylease. A George W.

Hood.

Q Ur Hood, -,-hat is your business or occupation?

4
4

t
I
I

J

Q)-',1hereabouts do you reside? A On Washington street,

25

26
A Dai ryTJ.<m.
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in th e Palms.

III!

I:
II:'

~
.!
J
I
.<
~

4

4
I
I

J

A Ican't fix the date,

Yon used to be neighbors, VTere you not, at one time?

yes sir.

Q

ding in HI' Franklin's family, do ¥ou remember ,,[hen'

for aTlY of the conversations. We had several of thern, so

Q During one 0 f those -- now, I beli ev e it .....r as during

about where the Walker Theatre is, in this city? A Yes sir.

in the Qarly part of Janu8r'J of this year, mter near or at

Q Do you I' 8n18111ber of having met 1fr Franklin somewhere

m~.ny I c mlnot fix th e dat e of any 0 f them.

Q I am speaking of the fi rst conversation. A Oh,

0, lnd ':ri..th reference to the time Ylhen there was some vred-

one of those lild;ge meetings, Yfas it? A yeS sir, during

several of them.

A Not close, no sir.

0, Well, you and he attended the same lodge for a number

of years? A yes sir.

Q And yon vr ere fo rme rly conn EC ted 'wi t h the city g ov e rn-

A

Q Do you knOVl Bert H. Franklin? A yes sir.

Q How long have you resided in this c ountY"i lJr Hood?

A I came out here in '87.

ment here? A yeg sir.

Q You have known him for a good many years? A Yes sir.

0. You and he were quit e intimate, on very friendly terms?

. that conversation ec curred?

1

2

3

4-

5

6

~.
7

8
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10
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1 first conversation was before th e IV edding in t he Franklin

2 fa1:1ily.

3 Q And do you know 'Jhea t bat oc cllrred, ab ont? A I

4- don't remember the date.

5 Q I will ask yOll ",'hether 0 r not at that conversation

that in speaking concerning his case, 111' Franklin's6

7 case it was after his arrest, wasn't it? A I talked

8 'with him both'l:Bfore and after his arrest.

A yes, I talked vri th him.9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Q I mean after his ar:r:est.

I will ask yon wh ether or not
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THE COURT. 1 have the volume here. The foundation is

that, say to you, "The man 1 got the money from or who

here. We will object to it onthe ground no foundation is

laid and the court can rule.

A I did.

We haven't our volu~eMR. FREDERICKS. Just a .mottreht •

chances of getting behind the bars?"

Q 1 will ask yeu whether or not--ycu asked him that, did

you? A 1 did.

Q 1 will ask you whether or not in answer to that--

lffi. FREDERICKS. Don't answer, Wi tness, please, until we

have an oppor tuni ty to obj ect •

MR. APPEL. He did or did not respond as follews or in

substance as follows or to this effect, "By God, George,

1 couldn't, for they were watching me too close.

THE COURT. On what page is the foundation laid, Mr. Appel?

MR. APPEL. Page 1021 is what 1 am now asking him firat,

your Honor. 1 wiTl ask. yeu whether or not at that time you

did or did not say to him, Ber t or Franklin, however

familiarly you addressed bim, "You are a damned fool,

why didn't you take that money and put it down in your

jeans and just simply tell it was all fixed and not take

laid. Objection is overruled.

MR. APPEL. Just read that ques tion •

(Last question read by tr..e reporter. )

A That was in substance his reply.

Q Then following that did he or did he not, follOWing

~s 1

2

3

4-

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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It was in pursuance to a conversation we had an agreement

1fue day before a s to what 1 was to say. That was on the

part is true?, A 1 told Mr. Hood at that time that the man,

if there was one man, that if 1 could find him, that

1 could clear myself, 1 thought; that the man that was

instrumental in getting me in that trouble was near me

when 1 was arrested,and, by the way, 1 didn't at that

"was

Now, if your Honor please--

1 will be frank with you about it.

"Q--Whichpart is not true and whichto this question:

time mean Mr. Darr 8W.

14th day of January. It

fixed up the proposition, It orwords to that effect,
Ia stranger to me. 1 never saw him before. He' was stand- I

ing wi thin thirty feet of me when the money was passed'. I
He disappeared when the crack came on and 1 have never seenl

:~ ;~::~? We object upon the gfound that no foundation has !

been laid inthat the wi tness 's answer--a part of that con- J
versation is true and a par t is not true, and then in answe I

I

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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Honor.

A That is not exactly the conversation, but it was--

His answer not being in

What difference does it make whetherto thilJ lti tness •

he gave that answer or not?

accordance with the question it is a denial on his part

that he said that very thing which we asked him, your

THE COUR T. ",he question as propounded by Mr. Appel is

SUbstantially the question for Which foundation was laid

on 1022. He says, "No," and then explains. That justi­

fies you in asking the question. The objection is over­

ruled. The foundation is laid.

to be in contempt of court 1 would like to call this con­

duct by its right name. There is only one name that it

mer i ts • Now your Honor wi 11 see that he tr ied to get

in the hedging of Franklin. Now, we are entitled to the

testimony of this wimess- as we claim his expressions were

MR. APPEL. Jus t a momen t--

~. Ford. The proper foundation has not been laid. We

object to it on that ground.

MR. APPEL. Your Honor will see and anyone can see, it

does not require a legal mind to see why counsel is so

anxious to take this book right out of my hand and read ldr. I

Franklin IS answer. Your Honor can see--if 1 were not

MR. APPEL. Read the question.

"(Last question read.)

MR. APPEL· Or worda to that effect or in substance?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
p 23

24

25

26
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1 that is the subs tance of it.

2 Q ~e words used--you mean to say by that the words you

3 hear d from him meant the same thing? A Yes, sir.

4· Q Did you or did you not then say to him, "Bert, couldn't

5 you locate him," and didn't he say to you, "1 don't

6 know whether 1 can or not, 1 have been waiting, hoping

7 to hear from him," or words to that effect?

8 MR • FORD. We object to tha t on the ground tha t Franklin

9 answered that in the affirrr.ative1 111 think 1 did say

19 be wants to.

20 THECOUR T. 1 think you are within your rights, Mr. Appel.

21 Let us have the next 'question.

22 MR. APPEL· This man is only harrassing the orderly

23 examination of this witness, your Honor, that is all his

24 purpose ia, it is a trick, that is all it is; it is con-

MR. APPEL. Very well, your Honor. The admissi on coming

from the District Attorney that he said so, then it is

all 1 want.

THE COURT· Objection sustained.

MR. FORD. We object to the comment of counsel.

MR. APPEL. He can object all he wants to, your Honor, for

that matter, 1 s imply am saying 1 agree with the cour t

because of this statement of counsel; he can object all

No foundation laid for it.that, yes, sir. II10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

25 temptible, your Honor, to do that. Now, there was noth-

26 ing in my statement that 1 agreed With him and 1 agree wit
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7 word "contemptible" as to my actions in court, 1 leave it

8 to your Honor and submit the matter.

9 THE COURT. 1 think the conduct of the District Attorney

was entirely within his legal rights; 1 think the posi­

tion of Mr- Appel was entirely within his legal rights,

but 1 do think it is remarkable, gentlemen, that we should

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

-"not confine our work more~ closely to the examination,

after a matter is passed upon and the matter is ruled

upon, let us go to the next question; the weather is

very hot and it is trying- tet u~ get on with the

examination.
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2

MR APP:BL: II I am going
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to c haracteri3e his condnct .wery
n Z

3 UR FRlIDERICK,'3: We have no objection, if that is done in

4 the ordinary l,meu8Se.

5 THE COUCtr: You har e that right.

6 MR ApDEL: I will use any language I please, and you 0 r----- - -~.
7 anyone else cannot urevent me frcR11 doing that. ,

"....- .-.....c<.....---.....".,.,....,..----..~-·"-~~~ ...... a .- -'

8 TEE coum: What is the ned question, gentl ernen?

9 ::rR APPEL: Did he or did he not say then to you, if I

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

I

remember right, that he thought thi s man who had ,CS iv en him

th e money was a San Francisco man?

1m FORD: We object to that on the ground that it does

not in anywise tend to impeach the testimony of Franklin

given on Franklin,s examination, Which '\'las as folloYls:

lfQ __ Did yon further say it v:as your impression he ViTas a

San Francisco man or possibly an Eastern man? A -- I think

I did, yes sir. If

HR APFEL: That disposes of that question.

19 THE COURT: ObjECtion sustained.

20 MRAPPEL: yes, that di spos es of that qn esti on; y ES si r.

conve rsations you had vlith him, and being at the place

s ation that is all Etied to h<We occurred som6'Nhere along

after the middle of January of this y 001'; one of the first

21

22

23

24

Q Now, my exarninat ion cf YOll has referred to a conver-

25 that I have referred to. 1m I correct in fixine the

26 Mr Witness? A Somewhere in that 11 e.Lghborhood.
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And -- yes sir. And this occurred in-that, all that I

2 have asked you, refers to one conversation, yOll understand?

3 A yes sir.

4 ![R APPEL: That is all.

5 1m FREDERICKS: That is all, Mr Hood.

6

7 FRANK EDWARD DOMINGUEZ, a witness called

8 on behalf of thedefense, being first duly syvorn, testified

9 as fo llovrs:

10 DIRECT EKAUINATImI

111m APPEL: You may state your name, please? A Frank Ed-

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

vard Domingu ez.

Q How old are you, 1,rr Domingu as? A 36 years of cg e.

Q, 1/:1ere were you born? A Los .Angeles City.

Q How long have you made your residence h ere in Los

Allgel es city? A All my life.

Q, \\hat is your business or profession, Mr DOminguea?

A Attorney at IaN.

19 Q Do you kno~ Bert H. Fraruclin? A yes sir.

20 Q How 10n,S h8've you Imown him? A Oh, I should say 18

21 or 20 years, maybe less.

22 Q Where is your 0 ffic e, ur Domingu as? A 403 Califor-

23 nia Building, Los Angel$ City.

24 one of the rooms connected ,vith J'1r Rogers' office?

25 A .yes S1.r.

26 Q Do you know ~ohn Drain? A yes sir, I know Mr Drain.
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1

2

3

Q And one F. lvl. Nichol? A Frank Nichol?,

Q yes sir. A yes sir.

Q Do you I':ememb er having been present at a tiJne _men

4 Nicho 1 a dd Mr Drain and j,Kr Franklinwere wi th you, ei th er

5 at the Hoffinan bar or at the Hollenbeck bar in this city

6 on Spring street? A No sir, not the Hofi'man or HoI len-

7 beck; at the Lyceum bar, right next to the Lyceum theatre,

8 and wh at \'1 as formerly th e Orpheum theatre.

name.

That is called the }Jiaj estic, is it? A I think it was
-

calJ.ed the :Majestic at that time; I am not sure of the.

About ,,-rhen vIas

A I appreciate tp~t.

A Oh, I do not recall the

That is, I never look at the names.

I am not familiar ,:eli th it.

-
exact date, it was sometime after the arrest of Tvrr Franle-

lin.

tbat mooting there, if any?

Q

Q

Q .And after he had given bail, I suppose? A Sir?

Q After he had given bail, I suppose? A I don,t rem-

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 ember that, 1Tr Appel; I don,t knovl just Y:Then it -'i,as \Yith

20 reference to his bail. or anything else.

21 Q Well, he VT as out t here? A Well, he was t here in

22 front of this pla::e ',vhm I come down the street.

23 Q NOVT, did you and the llITSOl1s I have already nameds;o

24 into the saloon? A We did.

25 Q And did you peopl e have 811;1 re:ereshments there, vli tb-

26 out specifying the }Jarticular kind of refreshments?
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1 UR FREDERICKS: That is objected to as immaterial; the

2 fact that they met and talked, is the point.

3 THE COURr: Obj ootion sustained.

4 MR APPEL: We exc ept •

5 Q WhO, if anyone, gave you an invitation, if at all,

6 to pa rtiYke ofrefresbments?
I

7 HR FREDERIIDCS: That is obj ected to as immaterial.

8 THE COURT: Objootion snstained.

9 l'lR APPEL: I offer to show by the witness the circum-

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

stcnce and the reason of their being in the saloon, and

the o:ecasion and the reasons for the meeting; I offer to

shoy! that Ur Franklin gave an invitation to one or more of

thep3rsons present, and that invimvcfthat invitation,

that th ere was a meeting and a conversation r...etween them

then at that time; I ar fer to sho'!! th e c irc unstanc es snrron

i n,.~ the c ai.1versation.

Jvm. FREDERICKS: Even so, that, we maintain, would be irmna-

terial.

19 J>JR APP:BL: The reason I c£ fer to show it is this: I will

20

21

22

give:my reasons, being that l;Ir Domin-suez has offices conn

ed w"i th 1fr ROg ers' offic e, and it \vould be argued here -­

T~~ COURT: yes, I see your point. That does change the

23 situation a little.

24 UR APPEL: It has been argued already --

J'ill FREDERICKS: On that vie:; of it, we \vithdraw the ob-25

26 jection.
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1 THE COURr: You can have the last question read. Read the

2 last question.

3 (Last question read.)

Bert H. Franklin.

5 lffi APPEL: Did you or 1;lr Drain 0 r lIfr Nichol in any \vay,

6 shape or mann~r, at that time, offer any suggestion to l[r

7 Franklin to cause him to com e into that bar room and there

8 engage in any conversation?

9 UR FOtID: That. isobj ected to on th e gr01md it is no t the.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

proper form to put an impeaching question in, that the mat-

ter concerning which the witness is being examined is

irrelevant and immaterial, and, further, it calls for a

conclusion of the 'Nitn ESS as to whetherany of the things

done or said WlOlUlt ed to an induc ement. The propt;r thing

is to let him state what vms said and done on that oc-

casion, let them put that in evi dence, and let th e jury

jUdge vfh eth er it 'If as an induc ement or not.

26



in there.

Mr. Darrow or at any other time, to assist in his defense
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A Never.

Did he or did he not say the whole of that

"I never rece ived a dishones t dollar from

Wi 4.qd. Ccl1J1tr 4li~

The objection is overruled. What is yourTHE COURT·

in any way, shape or .manner?

in the wor 1d. "

following:

answer, Mr. Dominguez?

A Please give me the question, Mr. Petermichel.

(Last question read. )

as 1 have indicated to you in the question?

MR. FORD. We-object to that as no proper foundation laid

shOWing the time this occurred--the persona preaent--

A No, sir, it was at his special request that we went-------_.

Darrow. He never knew anything connected with this matter­

MR. FORD. The page, please.

:MIl. APPEL. --836--meaning "by this matter" the SUbject

of the bribery of Lockwood and Bain--"he, Darrow, is too

good a man to do anything of that kind, he was mos t kind

hearted, generous and the best man 1 ever knew in my life

and he would not stand for any corruption or dirty work

and he never gave me a do]lar for any corrupt purposes

MR • APPEL. Q Were you at that" time in any way engaged by

Q 1 will ask you whether or not in that conversation and a

tha_t time and place you did, and in the presence of the

persons named} < already by me, you did or did not hear

Mr. Franklin say -in effect or in substance or in words the

6p 1

2

3

4-

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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may make is simply upon that point, upon the conversation

MR • FREDERICKS • It slipped my memory.

THE COuRT. 1 thought it was gone into fu11y to fix the

date and time after his arrest and when he was out on

1 went over the time, it was after Franklin's

arrest.

to fore.

MR. APPEL·

THE COURT- Objection overruled.

MR _ FORD. Will your Honor state the time that they have

fixed this? It is fixed in the impeaching question but

not at the present time.

THE COURT. 1 think it is fixed here inthe questions.~. ~­

pel has propounded to Mr. Domingue~

MR. FREDERICKS· 1 listened carefully and 1 was wai ting

for the time, because 1 noticed it had not been.fixed here-

bail is his description of it.

MR. FORD. At page 835 of the transcript M4 Franklin fixes

it, the question was propounded fixing it within a period

_of ten days, line 8, page'S-05-­

THE COURT. 1 think it is fixed.

MR • APPEL. ~he rule is this and we might as well settle it

forever: That where the Witness interrogated sought

to be irepeached admits the occasion of the conversation

and the conversation but only denies the words, that every­

thing else is admitted except the worda used, therefore,

the only interrogation that counsel upon the other side

1

2

3

4-

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

I
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about, ten days after his arrest, ten days along about the

10th of December that would be, or something of that kind,

not necessary, but this time has not been fixed, and 1 am

sure of it. This witness does not know what time, this

jury does not know what time and to say that it was a time"

after Franklin's arrest and while he was out on bail would

mean any time from the 28th of November to the present

day. Now, there wer e times along dur ing .that when condi­

t:iions changed and statements that would be made at one

time would be looked at in the light of the circumstances
all

that existed at that time and/we ask is that the time be

If it means the time that Franklin is talkingfixed.

and denial and upon which there is a conflict, the occasion

being admitted, the time and the persons present being

a dmitted but the language being denied, the only thing
it

left is was this used or was~not. 1 submit it) that is

the only logical way of interrogating the witness.

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 do not want to take up any time that is

1

2

3

4"

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
then let us understand. That is all we ask so tha tit is

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

u III ers tood.

THE COURT· 1 think, upon reflection, 1 think the District

Attorney is right upon that. 1 think the time will have

"to be fixed.

MR. APPEL. Well, 1 will offer now for the purpose of

laying the foundation and as a part of the question pro­

pounded to the Witness, I offer the testimony of Mr. Frankl



1 fixing the time himself as follows:

2 MR. FORD· Well, we admit that Mr. Fanklin--

3 :MR. APPEL. I don't care for this man's admiss ion.

4· 1m. FREDERICKS· This is par t of the question--

5 THE COURT. Mr. Appel is propounding his question and he

6 has the floor. Go ahead.

7 UR. APPEL. 1 offer to read the following: "Q--You remembe

8 talking to him there about the case? A--When? Q--This

9 is after your arres t and before your plea of guil ty? A-_

Yes, 1 remember it. Q--You remen'ber it? A--Yes, sir.

Q--Do you remember of F. M. Nichol being there? A--Yes,

a per iod of three or four months. Mr. Rogers--lt was short­
/

ly after the arrest. 1 cannot give you the date. He

knows the incident. A--Yes, sir, I think it was within

10

11

12

13

14

15

sir. Mr. Ford...-That is kind of very indefinite. It is

16 10 days. Q--Within 10 days? A--l think so, yes, sir.

17 Q--Now, did this conversation occur in the presence of Mr.

18 John Drain, Mr. F. M. Nichol and Mr. Frank Dominguez, you

19 invited them all into the saloon to have a dr ink? A--Is

20 that part of the conversation? Q--The part about inviting

21 them to enter and have a drink is a part of the conversa-

22 tion. It

23

24

25

26
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1 UR FREDERICKS: With that date fi:x:<'!d, Yv'8 withdraw the ob­

2 j ection.

3 !:JR APP:BL: ( Reading: )

4" A-- I don't lmow. Q.

IfAll right. It so happened did it?

You a re not ashamed to take a

5 drink vri t h :me, are you? A --Wait until I answer that

6 part of th e question. Q All right. A -- I remember vre

other on e.

went in. I don't rem~nber I invited them or not. Q. -- An

Then ur Ford obj ects, and lfr Rogers

Q, -- AbOll t .John Drain? A -- yes si r. Q. -- You

for some years?t1

know that .John Drain hasn't drunk anything but buttermilk

UR FREDERICKS: There is nothing befo:c~e the court •
.'

UR APPEL: HoW, having read the testimony of Hr Franl'"..lin

in the record here, and he having fixed the time, being the

time wi thin a short time, or '.'Ii thin about t en days after

his arrest, and he having pointed out theecact times and

the pe rsons then being pr esent, you may state whether 0 r

not you heard Franklin Se\{ the ma tters and things Which

much.

THE COURT: COnjlsel is asld.ng a question.

:MR FREDERICKS: I hare vri thdravm the obj ection to the

drink anything but buttermilk,' and that Franklin replied,

'That is good enough drink; take that if you want', and

you \lI'8nt in? Do you remember t hat? A -- I remember we

you said to .John Drain, 'You are not ashamed to drink with

me, are you?' Whereupon Hr Drain said, 'You know I don't .

went in to drink. I question the buttermilk story very

25

26

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
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22

23

24
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1 I have indicated to you in :my previous questions, to....

2 wit: ItI never received a dishonest dollar from Darrow.

3 He never mey! anything connectedvlith this matter", mean­

4- ing the bribery of the juror Lockwood and the Juror Bain;

5 "He is too good a man to do anything of that kind; he \vas

6 most kind-hearted and generous and the best man I wer

7 knew in my life; he 'wouldn't stand for any corruption or

8 di rty work and he never gave me a dollar for any corrupt

9 purpo ses, in the vlorld." Did he 0 r di d he not make th at

llR APPEL: Wait a moment.

hOVlever. Jfr Nichol ',vas not there.

A He did, and more. Not in the presence of Mr Nichol,.
by him in his testimony?upon the occasion named ;~.

statement, the whol e of it, and ev.ery word of it in your

presence, and in the lJrcsence of the prsons named by me

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 THE COUR:r: Gentlemen of the jury, waring in mind your for-

17

18

mer admonition, we will take a recess for 5 minutes.

(After rec ess. )

19 THE COURr: Gentlemen, in regard to a copy of the '.RTibune

that was wanted the other day, the bailiff info~s me

26 to by me and to v,hich you h8lTe already testified

that he has found an extra copy and has it in possession;
1m :5REDERICKS:

he \Trill have it here tomorrow morning. '" Vhenever it is

found, as far as Vie are concerned, it may be SUbstituted.

for the record.

MrDominguez, 'when the qnestion just referred1m APPEL:

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 part and portion of the s arne conversation, did you or did

2 you not, state to Hr Franklin tha t you-,vere sorry to see

3 that he, Franklin, had gotten into trouble, but that no­

4- body could accuse him, Franklin, of wer having $4000,

5 and did you in that connection say to him, If I don't know

6 whether you are guilty of "What youare charged t but if you

7 got tba t money, you got it from Darrow?1f
-

Did you so

8 state? A The last part of that statement is not true.

9 The first part of it is true.

16 question, and if the 'I'd tn ess did have th e conversation

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

18

19

20

Q Did you thereafter, at aIV time or place or in the pro­

sence of any other persons, ~tempt to or try to make

Franklin say the s a'l'Ile thing that you have testified to.

:MR FORD: Obj ooted to upon the ground that it is an at­

tempt to :erOSS,fexamine their ovm \",1 tness, an:tl no prope r

foundation h as been laid for the asking 0 f the present

wi th lfr Franklin at any 0 th er time and plac e, a proper

foundation should be laid by asking the time, place and

persons present, and putting the conversation to the \"Ii t-.
ness.

21 MR APPEL: l{o, your Honor. We are asking now fo r affi r-

22 mative testimony in contradiction of the evidence given

23 by 1,{r Franklin upon the stand. I refer you!" Honor to his

24 statement, page 848, "He had tried", meaning ur Domineuez,

25 to make me say sine e that time that I did it, but I deny

26 it."
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1 THE COURI': Obj ection OV' errul ed.

2 lfR APPEL: Now, answer the question. A Iro sir.

3 Q In t hat conversation referred to by you and by me in

4 my questions, did or did not, le{r Drain sey to 1,Tr Frank­

5 lin, ttI would not think you had so much money, and if

6 there is anythine of tho t kind, t here must be som ooody be­

7 hindyonbesides yourself tt ? Do you remember that?

8 A jUst pI ease read that tome again.

9 lfR FOB]): What lin as, U r Appel?

10 UR APPEL: page 849. (Last question read by the repor-

11 ter. A t did not.

12 MB. APPEL: Di d or did not, }[r Franklin, in t he conversation

13 alluded to already, say that he vIas innoc ent of th e charg e

14 ~ainst him, or ma~ntained in any v~y, shape or manner, his
I

15 I alleged innocence? A He did not.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

261

I

C!~
~\:
fiC
~.,

\ :
....
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MR. APPEL. And then 1 further said to him, "Did he in any

way, shape or manner maintain his innocence1" and the witn ss

san, "No."

witness.

1 want to

Mr. Appel's question

No, that was the question before.MR. FREDERICKS

MR. FORD. No, he says he didn't.

MR. FORD. Mar that last question be read?

MR. FORD· 1 move to strike that out as a conclusion of the

THE COURT· Yes.

THE REPORTER. Mr. Smith has the othe~ question.

MR. FORD. 1 move to strike it out on the ground it is

calling for a conclusion of the Witness.

THE COURT. The Witness says he does not remember.

III • FORD. We move that that last part be stricken out •

The first part is all right,. but the last part we move to

have it stricken out as a conclusion of the Witness; whe-

Was was ,he maintaining his innocence.

THE ooURT. Mr. Appel's question Was liDo you remember that?"

and he says, tlNo, 1 don'lt remember."

witness's conclusion.

know whether this was Franklin's words or whether it is the

THE COURT. In that event we better call in the report er.

.MR. • APPEL. 1 think 1 asked Mr. Dominguez whether or not

in that same conversation alluded to by me in my question

and by him in answers, whether or not Mr. Franklin said

that he was innocent of the charge.

p 1

2

3

4·

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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2

3

4-

5
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ther~';or not he said it, it would be a fact and the witness !

says he does not remereber that, the last part, whether he

did anything to maintain his innocence or was maintaining

his innocence would be calling for a conclusion of the

witness.

6 THE COURT· The motion to strike out is denied.

7 MIt • APPEL. 1 asked it in view of his language.

8 THE COURT. 1 have it before me, line 25, page 849.'

upon the same occasion and at the same time and place, and

in the presence of the persons named by you, whether or

not Mr. Franklin said, in view of some statement in which
".illl
*I"~"

Captain Fredericks IS name was mentioned, as follows, in~:~~
~I ",I
1:1 r"'~the words 1 am going to quote, or in subs tance, or to the i!lr'"
!H i'~same effect or meaning the same thing, the following: \r m:;,

"Now, boys, don't attack Cap tain Fredericks in this thing~(~1:

he is my fr iend and he is your fr iend, 1 see him every 1111::
I~! I _.if

.II~

time 1 pleas e and he is my fr iend." Did he or did he .11"

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

MR. APPEL. Yes, sir. Q You may state whether or not,

19 not? A He did.

20 QAgain alluding to the same time and place and the

21 same conversation, and as a part of the same conversation

22 refsrred to by you and by me in my question, you may

23 state whetber or not Mr. Franklin then said, you first

24 having said to him, "Well, Bert, 1 am sorry to see you in

25 this trouble," and didn't he say following that remark by

26 you, nOh, don't worry about me, 1 will get out of this
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1 all right," or words to that effect or in sUbstance, or

2 meaning the same thing? A He did.

3 Q Did you meet Mr. Franklin afterwards, by the Hollenbeck

4· bar or the Hoffman bar on February 0, 1912? A The date

5 1 don't remember, but 1 did meet him there subsequent

6 to that other conver<sation anyway.

7 Q 1 am alluding to a conversation which Mr. Franklin

8 says--

9 THE COURT. What page, Mr. Appel?

17 Mr. Ford and appearing in this record at page 1552, either

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

18

J.ffi • APPEL. t wi 11 give it to your Honor in a moment.

MR. FREDERICKS. ff there was only one conversation at

that place wi th this wi tness we will make no con tro­

versy but what it is the same conversation.

J.ffi. APPEL ...- being the conversation alluded to by Mr.

Franklin as having taken place on February ord, being

given by him in answer to a question propounded to him by

at the Hollenbeok bar or at Polaski's Hoffman Cafe or 111111'11

19 bar, whatever you may call it, you may state whether or

20 not at that time in your presence' Mr. Franklin, ther. speak-

21 ing concerning the matter at issue, said to you that he

22 did not propose--other persons being present whose names

23 we were unable to attract the attention of Mr. Franklin to--

24 MR • FORD. What page?

25 MR. APPEL. l551--say in yourll'esence or to you or addresB-

26 ing those who were surrounding you and he, that he



effect 1

prQ·pose to tolerate or allow anyone to drag in the nare

of Mr. Darrow in connection with his case, or words to that

wise intend

on that occasion, the answer of Franklin being, to

question, as follows, nl think 1 did state that."

I
I

the same I

to
We object that onthe ground it does not in any

l-

to impeach the testimony Which Franklin gave

MR • FORD.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 THE COURT. Objedtion sustained.

9 }AR. APPEL. We take an exception.

19 MR. APPEL. 1 am not asking for the conversation, 1 am

20 asking--

21 MR • FORD. Please let lne make an objection--

22 THE COURT. tet us have the objection.

23 MR • FORD. --and no foundation laid for the asking of

24 another conversation between hi m and Franklin.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Q Mr. Dominguez, \Vere there any more conversations between

you and Mr. Franklin than the two which 1 have indicated,

the first of which is alleged to have occurred about or

in the neighborhood of 10 days after Mr. Franklin 's arres~,

and the other one on February 3rd, 19121

MR. FORD. We object to th::t as incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial and attempting to call for hearsay testimony

otherwise than in a manner tending to impeach the testi­

mony of former--

ll~ I'~

1
11111

'
11'IM

III :;d

25

26
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1 THE COURT: This is for a different purpose?

2 . ]:rR APPEL: Yes, your Honor, very appaeent.
~

3 THE COUH.T: The obj ection is overruled.

4- A With reference to this specific matter to vfuich I have

5 been test ifyirg?
, .

6 lJR APFEL: yes. A None other than the two I have men-

7 tioned.

8 Q At that second conversation or ....r.i.th reference to that

9 second conversation, were you at that time endeavoring to

16 nect.ed with the defense?

17 1!tR FORD: objected to upon the ground it is calling for a.

18 conclusion af the yJi tness, and. a statement t perhaps; that

19 it is absolutely, incomiBtent, irrele.rant ,:no. immaterial

20 and not the best evidence. The best evidence of vJhat the

II f:'
'1 1,,'

11

I bc~

III::
II uU:

II ltd
II I~II

I 111~1

ests of preparing or anticipating the preparation 0 f any

for the ,purpose of being a witness or of getting informatio

~o conv.eyto :Mr Rogers or to theo.efend~:mt or to anyone con-

iug or in any manrier or for any protection to him, either

defense on behalf of this defendant, or in aic1ing or assist- ;!~

'I ~~
" ;1"1.
!I,,,I
II r"'~
il r!~

:1 i'~
II ~:~i

or attempting to orex:erting your best efforts in the inter-

15

10

11

12

13

14

21

22

defffilse intended ~~s his actions, acts speaks louder than

words.

23 l,ffi FREDERICKS: Nothing h~.s been ~dmi tted in referenc e

24 to this second conv er'sation; th at is th e point. Franklin

25 admitted a conversation and the impeaching question was

26 mked of this vfitness. We object on the gro1.md no founda-
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

tion no foundation has been laid, so this witness he.s not

testified a word upon it concerning that conversatfoD, not

a word.

M"R APP}[,: 1fr Franklin at one pa rt· of his testimony on

c ross-examina tioD, your Honor, stat ed that :Mr Dominguez

that he realized that, and that Mr Dominguez was at that

time being conn ected with the offices 0 f Ur Reg ers en-

d€avori~ to prepare a defense; he said that as a fact.

9 THE COURI': I see your obj ~t. Obj ection overruled.

time.

THE COURr: lInswer the question.

said as far as illustrating his own knowl edge, the vrit-

It yras not admitted for the

No sir, I did not.A

statements to this witness.

ness' knowledge, and the reason for hisc8ution in making

purpose of showing ur Dominguez' ~onn~tion '\iv.i.th lTr Rogers,

b ec aus e ~1 t tha t t line 1l[r Domineu es -- the fac t that 111'

DominguEZ vIas connected withur Rogers in the ltl"\" offices,

was not a matter in issue before the court at all, and

:faTrthat reason I think it is vvholl~t imm~\terial at this

Mr Dmmingu ez was c onnec t ed wi t h ROg ers' 0 fiic e v,as me rely

1m FORD: Just on e th ing, if your Honor "I"[ill pe nni t me.

Jlfr Franklin's statement th at he thought -- that he kn e:r

10

11

15

12
1

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24 lfR AFPl:1L: .And you yrere not -- lJy' ques ti on ,..as vih et her you

were preparing a defense? A

InRAPP]L: Take the witness.

No sir, r",as
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1 CROSS-EXa{INA~ION

2 IrR FREDERICKS: At this first time, Mr Dominguez, ten

3 dla~s, approxim~lt ely ten days aft er Franklin was arrest edt

4 you said he vias not Inc-lin taining his innoc enc e. He was

5 not admitting his gUilt, either, was he? A 110 sir.

6 llR FREDERICKS: That is all.

7

8 ],ffi APPEL: I forgot to ask t he question --

9 THE COUHL': Do you want to ask another question on direct~

sir.

MR APPFL:. We exc ept. Th at is all.

,.
That is obj tXted to upon t he ground

that it is hearsay, innnateri'll and no foundation.l~id.

~e d~dn,t take the invitation•.

THE COUR[': Objection sustained.

UR APFEL: Your HonaTf, in refe:'enc e to 1{r Drain, we unde:=­

stand 11:1' Drain is ~.bed at Jruriett" Eot Springs, ~md that

Q, I wish you v.ould be kind Enough to s tate to th e jury

What, if arwthiTl-B, more he said in refel'ence to the sub­

j ect" which vvas the subj oot of my question.

I beg your Honor'S pardon for having to question the wit­

ness. As I understood you, Ur DOmingn eSt when you answer-

?:TR FREDERI CKS :

JER APPEL: yes, a ma t tel' hes been calle d to my at t ent ion.

Cd the first question that I propounded to yo~, th at you

said yes, that, he sedd t hat and a good deal more. A Yes

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24 I
25 I

I
. 26 I

I
I
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1 he is unable to be here. we understand counsel he re, or
,

2 someone here connected with the defense, has some infolma-
l

3 tion directly from his attending physician. It will be

4 necess&ry to take his d. eposi tion t here at that place.

5 UR FORD: If the court please, there is a proper method
,

6 of taldng that :,up outside the presence of the jury, ~nd

7 not in the presence of th e jU~J.

8 1ftR FREDEHICKS: I assure cOUl1sel "TTe vJi11 fe.cili tate the

9 matter.

101m APPEL: I am e.sking if we can't make some erraIl,-:sements~
11I1

18 lIR APPEL: JUS t a moment.

19 THE COURT: Letts see what the offer is.

20 HR FORD: If the court please, counsel cannot get up here

21 and m'lke an offer to put in evi denc e vri thout offering th e

22 document to counsel, in order that they may be -- get

23 certain matters before this jUly and read th e vhole of this

"I]\JR FREDET{[CKS: We will stipulate wi th counsel, to facili tate 5i

eY".hibited to us.

II
"

If the c anrt pI ease, the docUTflent has not beenUR FORD:

at Los Angele on Tuesday morning, Decenber 18,1911.

the matter in any ~ey, that seems proper.

lIR APP]L: How, your Honor, we offer to read to the jury

part of the nerlSl)8IB l' article pUblished in the Tribune

15

16

17

11

12

13

14

24

25

26 I

newspaper, that ~~uld not be per.mitted.

THE COURT: I haventt any idea that·counsel is now going

to read th e whol e paper.
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it.

1m APPFL: In connection vrith the testimony and cross-

THE COURT: This is a paper 'of what date?

lvIRAFPEL: I am not going to read cItY portion of it.
II
l,.
II

II

"II
J
I
Ii

""..l
"

Let me see the article.

Wait a moment. I haven't made my offer.

December 12th, 1911.

TPJr. COURr: All right.

examination of the reporter 6ft the ~ribune referred to by

mon newspaper.

widenc e c;l po rtion of t he article appe aring in the issue

of th e Tribune' of this city under date Tuesday morning,

to do that, the exact la~3uage of the statute would require

stop him I will.
,

THE COURT: I will hoor Mr Appel. If it is necessary to

I am i dentii'ying the lJap ere

o £'fer, ~nd let us see vrhat he is going to of fer to th e jury,

if he had a witness on thestand, he would helVe to do trot.

THE COURr: If he had a witness on the st,1Ild, he would hwe

lER APPEJ: I cffer to read to the jury and introduce in

]ffi FORD: Your Honor, further, a newspaper is not on e cf the

document s which may lie 0 ffered in evidenc e. Here is a c om-

]JR AFP:BL:

UR APPEL: I am not. going to read it at all.

UR FORD: Shouldn't he offer it to us before making the

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 .

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24 counsel on the other side, c.s not having lieen pUblished,

25

26
and I nO\7 offer counsel to inspec t the docru:1ent and then

the court may look "t it and vre will look it allover, em
if it is proper we will introduce it and if not we will k

i t ou::..'"t"--'. =============::::::::::::::::===~t..
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THE COURT. Well, we will all look at it. This is offered

in connection with the testimony of rM. Harry Jones?

MR. APPEL. Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT. Mr. Jones d.s in the court room. 1 presume couns 1

makes no point of the fact that he is not on the witness

stand.

~I
"'11'ti

NO

1 am saying to the District Attorney to readTHE COURT.

are mater ial to the cross-examination of the Witness and

none other. 1 1 imi t my offer to that.

THE COURT. All right. It will take but a moment to

glance over the article, and then he can deter mine any

objections, if any he has.

the article, take time.

MR. FORD· 1 might suggest they go on wi th some other

testimony. It is qui te long.

MR. APPEL. Just that portion.

THE COURT· The Court just told the District Attorney

to take all the time they needed.

MR. APPEL. Your Honor, 1 have rot read it yet. 1 passed

it over to counsel. 1 offer to read those portions which

MR. FREDERICKS. No, the part that counsel wanta to read-­

JAR. APPEL. ,That is referred to by the--

, MR. FREDERICKS. That is bracketed around by lead penci11.

MR. APPEL. Ye~, and the heading of it.

MR. FORD. We would like the privilege of reading the

whole ar tic Ie.

lOs 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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Counsel may offer

that portion he desr es and if you--

MR. FORD. The whole article--you can't pickout two or

three lines and offer only that porti~n of it. We admit

the Whole of the article and make no fight against it.

THE COURT. Counsel has not offered the whole article.

MR. FREDERICKS. The point is this, possibly to obviate tm

48851
MR.A~EL. 1 will simply state to counsel which portions. I

MR. FORD. We have no objection to the article being I
introduced by counsel and he may read such portions of it I

as he desires if we may have the whole of it, the whole of

it read.

MR. APPEL· 1 am not stipulating they may read it all.

It is only that portion offered by the Witness in respect

to what Mr. Franklin is alleged to have said to him and

in which they questioned him as to whether or not he made~­

and they kept telling him in the questions that the portion

that appeared was not published.

THE COURT. You offer to introduce a portion of that

article, now you are entitled to that. We will cross that

br idge when we come to it.

MR. FREDERICKS. Our stipulation covers the whole artic1~.

MR. FORD. If they offer a part we are entitled to all of

THE COURT· That is the bridge 1 am referring to. We

it.

difficulties of proving the situation, as 1 und2rstand it

will cross that when we come to it.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

1



MR. APPEL. Wait a minute.

MR. FORD. 'Pardon me. 1 beg counsel's pardon.
"

l'
'"ill.'
~I

~I
111:1

488~
or not we would I
this article.

an objection to a portion.

UR • FDEDERICKS. It haa not come to tha t yet.

MR. APPEL. 1 Will make it over so as to make the record,

then his Honor can rule on it. 1 offer to read to the

jury that portion of the article referred to by me in my

previous questions here under date of Tuesday morning,

December 12, 1911.

MR. FORD. To which we object upon the ground no founda­

tion haa been 1aid--

the suggestion has been made aato whether

object to the introduction of a portion of

We say that we do not 0 bject and we Will stipulate that

the entire article may be introduced but we do not make

any'stipulation or waiver in regard to a portion of it,

that is our pos i tion •

THE COURT. Let's have the record made. You have not made

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 MR. APPEL. That portion of the article referred to by tm

We offer it for the purpose of showing that he then

did make a report and did write an article concerning wh

\Vas said to him immediately follOWing that conversation,

witness Jones in his cross-examination as containing the

reports made by him to the Tribune of and concerning what

l!r. Frankl in is alleged to have s aid to him at the preli­

minary examina tion of Mr. Franklin concerning Mr. Darrow.

25

26

20

21

22

23

24
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2

3

4

5

6

7

4881 I
and that such matter referred to by the witness was in the I
course of the business of the paper printed and pUblished

on Tuesday morning, December 12, 1911, and we offer to

read that portiol) under the words, "Vindicates Darrow."

commencing With those words and everything following

thereafter to and including the word "full." at the end

of the quotation marks there, as being the words of Mr.

8 Franklin. Counsel have already seen this ar ticle.

9 MR • FORD. To which we object upon the ground tha t no

On the further grounds tha t Mr. Jones has not·Jones.

got his notes which he wrote--he testified on the stand

that he never read the article after it was published. He

didn't know whether that portion to which counsel refers

was his article or not" and on the further grouni that .

it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial for any pur-

foundation has been laid showing that Mr. Jones read;

that article or that the article as it now appears in the

paper was printed in the manner that it was written by Mr.

19 pose, and onthe further ground that the article as printed

20 is not accordance with the s tory told by Mr. Jones on the

21 stand in any way, shape or form, and therefore could not

22 corroborate him.

23 MR • APPEL· This is a matter for the jury. We are very

24 happy that he is not going to pass on the truth or

25 veraci ty of wi tnesses here.

26 MR. FORD· Our objection, 1 think, is absolutely good as

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
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5

6

7

8

9
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11
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

48S8l
to the lack of foundation. We are willing to stipu- I
late that the whole of the article may go in to save time.

·:1
·,1
Ii,'[

I
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3 ][R .APPEL: The foundation VIas 1 t,id by them.

4 MR FOBD: The witness neuer sc."vY this flrticle in court.

5 Said he never read it.

6 THE COURT: The only question in :my mind, l1r Appel, is

7 whether or not. this article is identified as the erticle

8 referred to by the ':fitness' testimony. lrr Jones is in

9 the court room. .

101m APPEL: 1fr Jones, take the stand.

11

12 HARTlY JONES, recalled by thedefense,

13 for further direct examination:

14 lfR APPEL: l·{r Jones, on cross- e::::am.ination the other day

15 when you Yiere ecamined here in court, do you remembel'

16 whether or not the subject of the conversation you t esti- Ii

17 fied to as having had 'wi th Jvrr Frankl.in at the prelimin Bry

18 e.x:a:mination of JEr )j'ranklin, vd th referenc e to the Lockwoo d

19 charge of bribery against him, vrhetp..er or not the sarne VIaS

20 the SUbject of pUblication in the Tribune, do you remember
i

21 that? A I mOYI that I\vrote the story and turned it in.,.
P~

22 Q. l~ow, I attract youTm.tention -- have you read this

23 articl e vrhich \'/e hOlle been talking flbout here in your pr e-

NOYI, is that portion of thea-ticle in refe::"ence to

24 sence in the court room recently -- just now, a few moments

25 ago? A I read it lEt Friday night, I think.

26



1

2

3

4

the matter testified to by you upon the wi tness stand

heretofore, in this. court, is it sUbstcmtially correct,

or not?

HR FORD: Obj En t ed to upon t.he groun d no foun dat ion has

5 been laid for the witness refreshing his me~ory in that

6 matter, and ask leave of the court under section 2047

7 to c ross-eJcamine th e yvi tness cone ernine t his document at

8 this ... .
L.J.me. He is seeking to refresh his memory with regard

9 to a transactions of a certain occasion by introducing

t he document.

THE COURT: The witness has not yet testified to anything

upon ~;Jhic h you can cross-examine.

Counsel is asking him a question, and he'rIm COURT:

l1R FORD: He just identified this document -- .. counsel is

now asking him the qaestion t is it sUbstantially the same

as you VVl'ot e at that time?

17 has not ms\yered it.

lITt FORD: Eut he has refreshed his memory the other

THE COtTRT: You mt~ be enti tl ed to t hat after he has

c ro ss- ex:amine hini conoerning it.

A SUbstantially, yes sir.tiona

answered that question, bjut not now. ~nswer the ques-

day asto vhat v.as in this article, and we ask leave to

UR APPEL: Now, you say you have seen this article pUb­

lished the morning of Dec~1ber 12th in the Tribune?

A I only read a portion of it, 1'[1' Appel, the portion

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

261
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1 with reference to Franklin's stateI:lent.

2 Q, Under the 'word "Vindicates Darrow"? A I don,t rem-

3 elT,ber just now.

4 THE COURT: Sit dOYIll and look c;t it, ]Ir Jones.

5 UR APPEL: lil'ow, Clm you say? A yes sir, I read that

6 portion of it.

7 Q Is that article as printed, and as found in this issue

8 a correct reproduction and sUbstantially correct of

9 the t\rticle that you vrrote following your conversation

10

11

12

13

14

15

vlith 1,[1' Franklin, testified to heretofore from the wit-

ness stan~? A SUbstantially correct.

Q, Did you, in your report, ,md in the article tmt you

vVTote, substantially stat e as follows: "When .Jus tic e

Young adjourned court, Fr&"1.klin called the nevvsp<:lper men

<:'bout him and made th e following statement : tI intended

16 to Js:eep my mouth shut conc erning this case until aft er the

17 Superior Court acts upon it, but it is my duty to defend

18 the good name of em innocent man. Those ;:ritnesses lied

19 When they said I had mentioned Clvrence Darrow's name to

20 them. I vrish to vindicate Darrow from any charge that

21 may be made egainst him in connection \7ith this case. I

22 may- be guilty of ,,11 I am charged vrith, but I am not a

23 fool. tll Did the article t hat you VI rote in referenc e

24 to that sUbj act sUbstmltially state v/hat I have read to

you or words to that effec tor the same meaning?

sir.

A Yes



CBDSS-EX~INATION

1 MR APPli:L: Take the y;itness.

2

3

4892
1

4

5

UR FREDERICKS: IS the rest of thes:-ticle also a sub-

stential reproduction of t hat story tilE. t you turned in?
I

6 A I c onld not--

7 JvIR APPEL: That is not material on cross-e:::anination.

examined.

We may

HoW much of itNot to refresh your memo~- on it.

article at th e noon 1'" ec ess, the ent ire artic Ie.

want to introduce it ,end we may not. "TJe will lmow \7hen

tion to the rest of it, we \"{ould hare to have the vritness

read it. It is 5 minutes of 12, end it will take that

time for him to do it, and we ryill ask him to read the

question yes or no.

did you read the 0 ther day ':,-hen you were looking it av er?

A Pretty hard to answer.

A just conce::nine the statements that ]Ir FOrd cross-

Q. . That part, a c oup]eof inc hes? A yes si r.

UR FREDERICKS: Well, of course, befOJie Vie lay the founda-

THE COUR[': You c~m anSYler t hat question y €S or no. 01:>-

jection OIorruled, and the \i1itness directed to answer the.

HR FREDERICKS: Well, if you know. A No, I don,t mow.

Q You haven't read it, is that tae idea? A Not to re-

J'J'rR APPEL: Mcc eption.

. fresh my memory.
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1 2 o'clock canes. (Discussion.)

2 (.Jury ,dmonished. Recess nntil 2 P.l~.)

3

4
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